United Nations

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY

NINTH SESSION
Official Records

<)

THIRD COMMITTEE, H71si

MEETING

Tresday, 2 November 1954,
at 3.15 p.m.

New York

CONTENTS
Peage

Apenda item 58:
I¥raft international covenants on homan rights {conftunred) 136

Chatrman: Mr. Jiri NOSEK (Czechoslovakia).

In the asbsence of the Chairman, Mr. Néiez (Costo
Rice), Vice-Chairmon, took the (hair.

AGENDA ITEM 38

Drafl international covenants on huwman rights
(A/2714, A/2686, chapter ¥, section I, E/2573,
A;’fc.gf’jg'?‘i'} (continued)

GENERAL DEBATE (conbinued)

1. Mr. ABDEL GHANTI (Egypt) recalled that the
Egvptian delegation had taken an active part in the
preparation of the draft covenants on human rights
(E/2573, annex 1) and pointed out that, at the sug-
gestion of one of its members, Mr. Azmi, Chairman
of the Commission on Human Rights, the Commission
entrusted with the drafting of the new Egyptian Con-
stitution had been guided by those two documents in
its work.

2

2. 'The new Egyptian Constitution, which was hased
on the principle that true individaal ireedom could not
exist without economic security and social develop-
ment would therefore be concerned not only with the
palitical rights of men, as in the past, but also with the
political rights of women and the economie, seeial angd
cultural rights of the whole population. Egvpt would
thus go a step further than the countries which had
based their constitution on the Universal Deciaration
of Human Rights.

3. The Egyptian delegation was still in favour of
single covenant. In adopting resolution 343 (V1}, the
General Assembly had set a dangerous precedent, as
the current debate had brought out. If really necessary,
two covenants might be acceptable i the signatory
States were to accede to and ratify them simultaneously,
but that was not the case. In that connexion, several
delegations had held that a two-thirds majority would
he required to reverse the decision taken in 1952; rule
124 of the rules of procedure, however, referred only
to motions for reconsideration of proposals at the
same session; moreover, the resolution in guestion it-
self amended a previous decision, but had, nevertheless,
been adopted by a simmple majority. Furthermore, it
could be argued that the decisions invoked consisted
of instructions given to the Comumission on Human

1349

Rights through the Yconomic and Social Conncil. Those
directives had served their purpose ; they no longer had
any effect and were in no way binding on the Third
Committee, which wag examining the whaole guestion
anew,

4, Resolution 545 (V1) of the General Assembly was
of paramount importance. The Egyptian delegation
could not accept the argument that the right of self-
determination was a collective right which did not
fit into the draft covenants. Without wishing to restate
the relevant opinions of many jurists and statesmen,
he would point out that the right of peoples to self-
determination was implemented in practice by means
of elections and plebiseites through which the individual
expressed his wishes, In the final analysis, it was the
individual who exercised the right, even though the
result affected his community; almost every human
right, incidentally, had those two aspects. Egypt was
therefore in favour of retaining article 1, which was
comton to both draft covenants, as i stood.

5. Article 48 of the draft covenant on civil and politi-
cal rights deserved detiled consideration, In proposing
it to the Commission on Human Rights, the Egyptian
delegation had observed that the provisions of para-
graph 1 coincided with the general policy consistently
pursued by the United Nations in respect of the Non-
Self-Governing  Territories, Tt should be noted that
the human rights committee, to which the proposed re-
ports wouk] be submitted, would be a neutral and im-
partial organ whose members, selected by the loterna-
tional Court of Justice on the basis of their personal
competence and high moral standards, would not in
any way misuse the information collected. In addition,
the proposed provisions wouli not apply only to the
Non-Seli-Governing Territories, but to 2l countries,
mcluding those which had been invaded or subjugated
by alien Powers. Those two observations also applied
to paragraph 3 of atrticle 48. The United Kingdom rep-
resentative had sald he considered paragraph 2 the
mast objectionable part of the article. He (Mr. Abdel
Ghani) pointed out that the text was based on the
Agreement of Fehruary 1933 between Fgypt and the
United Kingdom on the Sudan. The methods recom-
mended had been very successfuily applied in the
Sudan: that was why the Egyptian delegation had pro-
posed the existing text of paragraph 2. The Belgian
representative had said that to grant the right of seli-
determination to certain primitive groups would Jead
to chaos; in fact, paragraph 2 specifically stafed that
there had to be political mstitutions or parties testi-
fying to the maturity of the peoples concerned.

6. With regard to the federal clause, he sald that
federal States should not be able to assume fewer
obligations than the other States parties to the cove-
nants. Nevertheless, some of the federal States were
strongly opposed to that clause since, according to their

A/C.3/SR.571



140 Genersl Aswmbly—-Ninth Session—Third Committee

representatives, it did not meet thﬂr constitutional
difficultics, A compromise was called for, as long as fun-
damental rights and freedoms were not prejudiced
thereby and the decisions of the majority of the
General Assembly, in particular concerning the terri-
torial application of the covenants, were respected.
Egypt had therclore submitted to the Comunission on
Human Rights a draft resolution which had been re-
jected owing to a tied vote (12/2573, para. 258). The
proposed decision would solve the dificulty by allow-
ing the federal States to observe their own constitu-
tional processes with regard to signature and ratifica-
tion ; it would be a compromise hetweer the existing text
of the clause and the text suggested i Austraiia.

7. The absence of an appropriate procedure for the
consideration of individual petitions had greatly hin-
dered the United Nations in all its vork in the feld
of human rights. The individual was the victim of any
violation of those rights and he should be entitied to
complain and obtain redress. Article 25 of the European
Convention for the Protection of Human nghru and
Fundaimenial Freedoms recognized the right of individ-
vals and non-governmental nrganizatiom-; to  submit
petitions. Moreover, experience has proved the absurd-
ity of the systemn which reserved the right of petition
to States. Jn over thirty-five years, the International
Labour Organisation had not received a single com-
plaint from a Government, whereas various etuplovers’
and employee organizations had ireqgrently applied to
it. It was natural that States which svere on friendly
terms should he reluctant to complain ¢hout each other.
It was also something of a paradox that nearly all
the delegations which ohjected to the right of individual
petition were those which were opposed to article 1
of hath draft covenants on the ground -hat it concerned
a collective right; it would appear thit the argument
changed accarding to circumstances, The [Zgyptian dele-
gation reserved the right to raise the question of in-
dividual petitions again at a later stage in the dehate,
To eliminate complaints likely to create international
difficultics or to encourage malicious rropaganda cam-
paigns, the fallowing provisions might be considered:
first, the petitions should be addressed through a
national organization legally established in the coun-
try of the pefitioner; secondly, the getitioner should
prove that he had applied to his natonal authorities
and had had recourse to all the means of redress open
to him under his national legislation; “hirdly, in order
to be examined at the international level, each petition
<hould be sponsored by at least one non-governmental
organization recognized by the United Nations.

8. Several delegations had affirmed that some partic-
ular clause of the drafts would impose on their Govern-
ments obligations which they could not folfil; in the
aggregate, the examples mentioned covered a large area
of the proposed articles. Ii those reservations were
admitted, the covenants wouid be nat rower in scope
than any existing constifution. The Commission on
Human Rights had given due consideration to the
problem of the cbligations imposed or States; it was
for that reason that it had emphasized the progressive
nature of the economic, social and cultural rights and
had, in time of public emergency, provided for deroga-
tions from most civil and political rigats. It was not
possible to go further wrthout irreparibly weakening
the scope of the covenants.

9. Those general considerations explained the posi-
tion of Igypt on some of the main points in the two

drafts. It was the United Nations task to draw up
covenants to give legal definition to the principles pro-
claimed in the Universal Declaration of Human Rights,
Although the United Nations had decided, as far back
as 1947, to carry out that task, little had been done to
prepare world public opinion for the covenants. The
publicity so far given to human rights had referred
solely to the Declaration. The fatc of the covenants
largely depended upon how they would be received by
public opinion; the United Nations Secretariat and,
w1 particular, the Department of Social Affairs and the
Department of Public Information, the specialized
agencies and the non-governmental organizations should
do their utmost to win the support of all the peoples of
the world for those instruments, The Chinese represen-
tative, scconded by the Awustralian representative, had
suggested that a conference of plenipotentiavies should
be held to com piete the work on the covenants and
opern them for signature. Citing the unhappy example
of the Covention on TFreedom of Information which
remained a dead letter, he warned against hastening
to comvene a conference of plenipotentiaries before
world public opinion had been won over (o the cause of
the covenants.

10, Miss AMMUNDSEN (Denmark) said that she
would indicate her delegation’s gencral attitude with
regard to each of the two draft covenants on hu-
man rights (12/2573, annex 1), adding comments on
certain aspects which had  particula rl}, attracted  its
attention.

11. IMer Government attached great value ta every
effort made to further international co-operation in the
cconomie, social and cultural fields, Her country, whose
level of development corresponded largelv to that which
the fOrst covenant sought to achieve, and which had
contributed its share in the work of the specialized
agencies that were striving for the same ends, was the
more qualified on that account to express some doubt
as to the real uselulness of the draft covenant on eco-
nonig, social and cultural rights. In its opinion, States
should devote all their energies in that field to tasks
connected with the work already begun. The provisions
of articles 17 to 25 might have a disturbing effect on
the work done by the spectalized ageneics and bring
ahout a dispersion of energy. Her Government did not
underestimate the significance of declarations of prin-
ciple, but there already existed a Universal Declavation
of Human Rights, to which the proposed draf: added
nothing essential.

12.  As regards the drait covenant on civil and political
rights, her country, which had ratified the European
Canvention for the Protection of Human Rights and
Fundamental Freedoms, was willing to assume similar
obligations within the framcwork of the United Na-
tions. While the covenant nced not be identical with
the text drafted under the auspices of the Council
of Europe, her delegation regretted that the drait pre-
pared by the Commission on Human Rights contamed
no provisions on the right of petition. It was a gues-
tion not merely of enabling States to make complaints
against onc another, but also of enabling an individual
to protest against a Government that had encroached
upon his rights. The European convention contained a
facultative clause to that effect; that example might
usefully be followed,



5371st meeting—2 November 1954 141

13. Her Government doubted the appropeiateness of
article 1, which was common to both draft covenants.
[t had uo chjections in principle to a pravision aimed
at codifying the right of self-determination, but it was
sceptical as to the value of a declaration of 45 vague a
character as that proposed. Tt was sufficiently clear from
the Charter that the United Nations would always en-
deavour to {further self-determination; it did not seem
necessary to repeat that prineiple i the form of an
chligation imposed on every Biage,

14. Her delegation reserved the right to speak again
a1 a later stage, when the Committee undertook de-
tailed cansideration of the draft covenants.

15 Mr, ALTMAN (Poland} said that in his dele-
gation’s view the two drait covenants submitted by
the Cuommnission on [duman Rights could serve as the
Gasis for a very helpfd discussion. They contained
many truly progressive provisions designed to ensure
respect for the principles erunciated in the Unized Ma-
tions Charter in the matter of human rights.

16. His country, whose Constitution guarantecd
peditical, eivil, economie, social and {:u'h"uz‘ai_ rights for
alt citizens, noted with particular satisfaction the In-
clusinn in the drafts of provisions on the right to work
and to just and favourable conditions of work, the right
io the profection of health, and to edacation, the right
{o take part in the conduct of public affairs, the com-
plete equality of men and women with rega{df‘w patift-
cal and civil rights, the right to cqual pay for work,
the right to security of person and home, to justice
und to freedom of thought, conscience amd expression.
His delegation attached partwslar importance o ar-
ticles 24 and 25 of the drait vovenant om civil and
political rights. 1t also welcomed the provisions of
article 26, but thought that others should be added
io thewn probibiting the excrcise of the rights set forth
in the covenant for purpeses contrary to the principie
of iuternationzl co-operation founded on mutual re-
spect for the sovereign rights of States. It should be
stipulated in article 19 of that draft that no one night
esereise his right of freedom of expression in debance
of tae préncipi"és of the Unired Nations, especally to
cngage in war propaganda, to arouse hostility hetween
the nations, to eaccurage racial discrmmination or io
snread false information likely to jeopardize interna-
tional co-operation.

17, His delegation approved of article 1 of the two
drafts, which in its view was of paramount importance
heeanse the right of peoples to self-determination was
the essential eondition for the exercise of ali the other
rights proclaimed in the dralt covenants. Some delega-
tions had olijected that that right wes a collective one
amdd that the draft eovenant was concerned with the
rights of ndividuals, That argument was unconvineng.
The right of peoples o self-determination was based
ont the principle of the equality of all nations and meant
that cverv country was the master of its own fatfﬁ it
applied both to the individuals that formed ;the national
commumity and to that communiiy as a whole, There
wore mmny examnles o show that when a country was
not the master of its own destiny its citizens were Jike-
wise wneble to exercise their fundamental rights and
freedoms. Like the revresentatives of Saudi Arabia,
Verma and India. he was i favour of the retention
of that article, He alsa endorsed the Yugoslav rep-
resentative’s remarks on the subiect {568th meeting}.

Unlike the French delegation, he did not think that
a substantive article should be omitted on account of
the implementation procedure and that essential prin-
ciples should thereby be sacrificed to technical eon-
stderations. The objections raized by the United States
representative had merely confirmed the Polish dele-
gation i its view that it was necessary to retain ar-
ticle 1 i the draft covenants

I8 Many reservations had also been made concern-
mg the artcle relating to federal States, which was
common to bath dralts, His country had always op-
poserd the nchusion in the covenants of a federal clanse
whichh would provide a loophole for federal States, The
provisions of the covenants should he fully applicable
in all the tervitories of the contracting States, whether
federal or not. s delegation approved of the articl
in gquestion as 1t stood, 1t believed that the fundamental
principle of universality took on its full value in the
case of the application of the covenanrs and that any
exception in favour of federal States would be con-
trary to the provisions of the Charter. The article in
question, as 1t stood, met the wishes expressed by the
majority of delegations ot the eighth session of the
Genera! Assembly and corresponded to the prineiples
and practice of intermational law; together with the
clause which had been called the ferritorial appliva-
tion clause and which was alse conmmon io hoth drafts,
it guaranteed wmiversalicy o the application of the
covenants,

1%, He recallegd thst there were still some questions
o which the Commission on Human Rights had been
unzble to reach a decision, more particularly the right
of asvium and the right w own property. The absence
of auy provision on those sulijects was a serious omis-
sion. His delegation shared the views on the ri
asylum expressed hy the representatives of the USSR,
Franee and Czechoslovakia. The right of asyhun should
he granted to persons persecuted for their activities
inn defence of democratic principles, for their partici-
mation 1 the struggle for mational liberation, or for
their scientific work, As regards the right to own
property, his delegation considered that the discas-
st on the subject that had taken place in the Com-
nusgion on Human Rights and the proposal submiited
Ly the Dolish representative in that Camvnission might
serve as @ basis {or the drafting of an article on the
question, it being understood that the zocial and eco-
nomie developments which had tken place i the twven-
ticth century would Be taken into consideration.

20, The Polish delegation {felt that articke 8 of the
drait covenant on economic, soclal and caltural rights
should be supplemented in such a way as to guarantee
to trade-union arganizations complete freedom of action
in the atiainment of their oljectives, that freedom
heing indispensable if respect for the essential economic
rights was to be ensured.

21, He wished to make somie comments on the ques-
tion of implenmentation. Because of their legal natare,
the draft covenants should deline the obligations of
contracting States with a maximum of precision. Some
of the articles did not meer that reguircment, while
others did, Article 2, paragraph I, of the draft cove-
nant on coonemic, social and cultural rights and ar-
ticle 2, paragraphs 2 and 3, of the draft covenant on
civil and political rights were desipned, Ly the very
clear obligations they imposed on contracting States,



142 Genersl Assembly-—Ninth Session—Third Committee

to ensure observance of the rights ser forth in the
covenants.

22. The principle pacte sunt servandu was essential to
the execution of international agreeme:ts; therefore the
most effective method of implementation was the in-
clusion in such instruments of provisions clearly de-
fining the means of safeguarding the tights recognized.
His delegation was not opposed in principle to inter-
national measures, always provided thit such measures
did not depart from the Charter of the United Na-
tions and were in conformity with international prac-
tice. It appeared that the whole implementation pro-
cedure laid down in the drait covenaits did not meet
those requirements and that in particular it was con-
trary to the Charter. Such a procedure could only
promote disputes between States and could in no way
ensure observance of the rights set fcrth in the cove-
nants. On the one hand, by allowing intervention in
matters strictly within the domestic jurisdiction of
States, they rendered disputes inevitable and on the
other hand, a procedure contrary to the Charter, es-
pecially to Article 2, paragraph 7, would make the
very conception of human rights illusory. It was for
Governments to ensure observance of the rights in the
most effective manner. The question o implementation
should therefore be more thoroughly discussed.

23. He also drew the Committee's attention to the
reservations and the fears expressed )y some delega-
tions, particularly those of Brazil and Argentina, with
regard to the part to be played by the proposed human
rights committee,

24, Tinally, his delegation has always Leen in favour
of a single covenant, including civil, economic, social
and cultural rights.

25. He hoped that a detailed consideration of the
draft covenants would enable the Thitd Committee to
make them capable of ensuring effective observance of
fundamental human rights and his delegation was ready
ta lend its [ull co-operation to that end.

26, Mrs. ROSSEL (Sweden) expressed appreciation
of the fact that the Third Committee had the drafts
of the covenants on human rights before it. They con-
tained very varied provisions and hed a very wide
scope. Some representatives had expressed the opinion
that the Committee should come to 1 decision very
soon; the Swedish delegation thought that the Com-
mittee was only then entering the stage of the final draft-
ing and that it would be a grave mistake to press for
an immediate adoption of the covenants either that year
or the next. If they were adopted in an unsatisfactory
form, very few States would be able to sign and ratify
them with a view to the full implementation of all the
articles; the United Nations had the -esponsibility of
presenting to the world instruments which would pro-
vide an effective guarantee of hwnan tights,

27. With regard to the question of having one cove-
mant or two, the Swedish delegation fet that the draft
covenants as they stood established berrond any doubt
that it would have been impessilile to include all their
various provisions in one single text.

28, With regard to the question of reservations, her
delegation, like others, felt that it should be taken
up and decided before a detailed exaraination of the
separate articles of the draft covenants.

29, With regard to article 1, which was common to
both draft covenants, her country had {requently stated

that under the United Nations Charter it was incum-
bent on Member States to let themselves be guided by
the important principle of seli-determination of peoples.
It had been useful to study and try to define the prin-
ciple in the fight of current world conditions, but an
article of that kind should not be included in the draft
covenants. She feared that, in connexion with im-
plementation, it would give rise to serious problems
both of a political and of a practical nature; further-
more, paragraph 3 concerned an entirely different mat-
ter from the rest of the article and should not be in-
cluded in it.

30. The Swedish delegation would be able to accept
the other provisions of the drait covenants with certain
reservations. She would make a few comments on the
texts, beginning with the draft covenant on economic,
social and cultural rights. The provisions of that cove-
nant could be applied only gradually and her delegation
appreciated that thar fact had heen clearly siated in
article 2, paragraph 1. She also thought that it was
good to have all grounds of discrimination listed to-
gether in one paragraph, as had been done in article 2,
paragraph 2. That made them applicable to the whole
field covered by the covennt and made it unnecessary
to repeat them in every single article. No specific ref-
erence was made in that paragraph to matrimonial
status, however; legislation in many countries dis-
criminated against married wonen, for instance by
barring them from posts in the administration. Her
delegation did not intend to propose an addition, since
it took 1t that such cases were covered by the phrase
“other status”, but she wanted its position to be put
on record. Such an interpretation of the phrase would
make the article conform to the provisions of article
ITT of the Convention on the Political Rights of
Women (General Assembly resolution 640 (VII), an-
nex), which Sweden had ratified.

31. Article 3 of the draft covenants was superfluous,
siftce it was a partial repetition of what had already
been said in article 2, paragraph 2.

32, With regard to article 6, her delegation, like that
of the United Kingdom, thought that paragraph 1 was
nnt precise enough; it was more a general declaration
of principles than a provision forming part of a legal
document.

33. She was in favour of the general terms of article
7; it included a very important provision on equal
pay for work of equal value, which had already formed
the subject of a convention concluded under the
auspices of the International Labour Organisation.
She thought, however, that sub-paragraph (&) (i)
should be drastically changed since, as it stood, it re-
peated the provisions of article 2, paragraph 2. As she
had already said, the general non-discrimination clause
in that article made it completely unnecessary to in-
clude provisions against discrimination in any other
article of the covenant; to make provisions against
discrimination relating only to one or a few rights might
lead to dangerous conclusions., Her delegation would
prefer article 7, sub-paragraph (b) (i) to read sim-
ply: “Fair wages and equal remuneration for work of
cqual value”; the rest of the sub-paragraph might bhe
deleted. As she had already pointed out, both in the
Comunission on Human Rights and in the Third Com-
mittee, the reason for her delegation’s opposition to a
specific provision against discrimination between men



571st meeting—2 November 1954 143

and women was that it was anxious to see such an im-
portant principle logically applied. In that connexicn,
she wished to add a consideration which carried par-
ticular weight : she did not see who would have the as-
thority to decide the exact meaning of the phrase
“work of equal value”. The Swedish delegation thought
that in the draft covenant it was desirable merely to
state the principle of equal pay for work of equal
value in general terms and leave it to the ILO 1o go
into the details. The Swedish Government, like a num-
er of others, thought that problems of pay should be
settled by uegotiations between the parties concerned,
and 1t did not consider itself in a positinn to interfere,
What governments could and should do, however, wag
to set an cxample with their own employees,

34, With regard to article 10, the Swedish delegation
thought that that too could only state a general prin-
ciple in suppert of the more detailed provisions in the
maternity eonvention of the ILQ, which already covered
the ground, Paragraph 1 of the article should be
changed to read:

“Special protection should be acenrded to maternity
during reasonable periods before and after child-
birth
Like some other delegations, she found the word

“motherhood” lacking in precision and liable to be so
interpreted as to give rise to what had been termed
aver-profection. The right to social security covered
by the provisions of article 9 and applicable to “every-
one” naturally applied to both mothers and children,

35 Articles 11 and 12 could be merged,

36. She had no objection to article 15, provided that
the countries concerned felt that they were able to sup-
port it.

37. In the draft covenant on civil and polieal rights,
article & assumed that capital punishment would be
maintained tn some countries. It was verv regrettable
that a covenant on human rights should thus in a way
sanction capital punishment, not only in time of war
ar other public emergency, but as a penalty applicable
at any time. In view of the fact that many nations still
maintained the death penaliy ghe Jid not fnd it pos-
sible to propese any amendment to the article, but she
felt bound to express the opinion that the covenant
would have been meore in conformity with the high
ideals of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights
i any mention of capital punishment in that artele
had been omitted. For the same reason she would have
preferred the deletion of the word “arbitrarily” from
paragraph 1.

38, Article 14 provided that “any judgment rendered
ir a criminal casc or in 4 suit at law shall be pronounced
publicly except where the interest of juveniles other-
wise requires or the proceedings concern the guardian-
ship of children”, Under Swedish law, however, a
judgment could be rendered secretly (and the contents
of the verdict be kept secret) in the same way that a
court hearing could be secret. Court hearings could be
secret in several circumstances other than those men-
tioned in article 14,

33, The principles endorsed in article 15, paragraph
1, were generally followed in Swedish law. With regard
to the last sentence of that paragraph, however, it
should be noted that, in cases where a certain act was
pimnishable because of special circumstances (war, the

danger of war etc.}, the act was judged according to
the law in force when the act was committed, even i
the Hability to penalty had later been rescinded be-
cause of changed circumstances.

40. Her delegation noted with regret that article 19,
paragraph 3, contained no provision prohibiting cen-
sorship of mapterfal in advance of publication, She
poistted ont that the Swedish Freedom of the Press
Act included a peovision against such censorship,

41, The wording of article 22, paragraph 4, wag not
satisfactory. The equality of spouses should be rec-
ognized by the signatory States not progressively, but
from the Hme of ratification of the covenant, like the
other civil and political rights. At its eighth session the
Commission on the Status of Women had prepared 4
drait resolution for submission to the Leonomic and
Social Council, in which it was stated,

“Men and women shall have equal rights and re-
sponsihilities as to marsiage, during marriage and
at its dissolution.”?

That text should replace the text in the draft covenant.
Countries which desired (o stress the eguality of men
and women, which did net regard the provisions of
article 2, paragraph 2, as adequate and which advocated
the retention of article 3, had an excellent opportunity
to show their devotion to the principle under considera-
tion by supporting the text prepared by the Conunis-
sion on the Status of Women. In proposing that change
she assamed that adequate provision would be made 1
the draft to enable States which could not accede im-
mediately to the article to make the desired rescrvations,
It was true that at the ninth session of the Commission
on Human Rights her delegation had voted in favour of
the present wording of article 22, paragraph 4; but it
had done so in order to have an important privciple
registered in the covenant, since it had been obvious
that the wording it would have preferred had no chance
of being adopted,

42, Part IV of the draft covenant, which provided
for the establishment of a human rights commitiee re-
sponsible for the implementation of the covenants had
—with one very important exception—-her delegation’s
approval. It should be noted, however, that the Com-
missien bad oot yet examined the Uruguavan proposal
te establish an Office of the United Nations High Com-
missioner for Human Rights (E/2573, annex 11D,
The Swedish delegation’s objections o part IV con-
cerned the provisions of article 40. The powers which
that article would confer on the human rights com-
mttee were far too limited to make it possible for the
committee to function properly, since it would ad-
judicate only complaints made by States. It should alse
be empowered to hear and act upon complaints presented
by individuals or group of individuals. As the aim of
the covenant was the protection of individual rights,
her delegation believed that the fatlure to prant the
committee such competence would seriously hamper
implementation of the covenant.

43. Princess SULTAN (Pakistan) associated her-
self with the other representatives who had expressed
their appreciation of the progress achieved by the Com-
missicn on Human Rizghis, As Pakistan was represented
both on the Commission on Human Rights and on

L See Official Records of the Economic and Sectal Council,
Efgh%fe:afk Sesstan, Supplement No, 6, annex 2, draft resolu-
fion g,



144 General Assembly—Ninth Session—Third Committee

the Economic and Social Council it had had an op-
portunity fto express its views on the draft covenants
and declare its support of the principles embodied
thercin, The advantages or disadvaniages of those in-
struments and the difficulties that their implementa-
tion might entail would only be fully realized after
they had been put into practice. Provision should
therefore be made for periodic reconsideration and
amendments.

44. Her Government was also in favour of incor-
porating a clause concerning reservaions. For exam-
ple, non-interference with religious Jeliefs and prac-
tices should be goaranteed; with thkat aim in mind,
Pakistan would hke to be able, by means of reserva-
tions, to ensure that no law incompatible with any
particular religion would be imposed upon its 80 mil-
lion inhabitants, A reservations ¢larse was essential
in order to speed the adoption of the draft covenants.

45, Her delegation would vole in favour of article
18 of the drait covenant on civil and political rights,
which it found entirely satisfactory :s it stood. Not-
withstanding the apprehensions expressed by the Saudi
Arabian and Afghan representatives, she found that
text in complete conformity with the teachings of the
Koran. There was no compulsion in lslam, and it un-
equivocally condemmed hypocrisy. It was difficult to
see how any human being could have sufficient au-
thority to justify his pronouncing jrdgments on the
faiths and beliefs of others, For a Maoslem, the sole
judge of all such matters was God. She appealed to
the Saudi Arabian and Afghan representatives not to
question the views expressed by the Pakistan delega-
tion, particularly in a Committee where 85 per cent
of the members were not Moslems.

46, Article 1 of the draft covenants, which referred
to the right of self-determination, should be given care-
ful consideration. Any delay in the settlement of that
question might endanger the maintesance of world
pcace.

47. With regard to article 22 of the draft covenant
on civil and political rights, the Commission on the
Status of Women had proposed a different wording
for the frst sentence of paragraph 4. 11 resolution 547
G (XVIID), the Economic and Socal Council had
decided to transmit the proposal to the General Assem-
bly without comment. In Paldstan, marriage was gov-
erned by certain religious laws. The ¢mendment pro-
posed hy the Commission on the Status of Women—to
which the Swedish representative had already referred
--would conflict with those laws. Islem, the religion
of the majority of the people of Pakistan, guaranteed
almost equal rights to men and women, but there were
distinctions corresponding to the difference in the re-
sponsibilities of the spouses. The Mosl=m woman was
free in the choice of her hushand. She had an adequate
share of property which she inherited from her parents,
in addition to the mehr guaranteed by ber hushand.
she was not chliged to contribute to tie maintenance
of the family, While the husband had the right ta
divorce, the wife was also entitled to %hwla, None of
those provisions was in conflict with the laws of the
Koran or the Sunna. Article 22, while siving complete
equality to the spouses, wouid perhaps deprive Mos-
lemns, both men and women, of their rejpective advan-
tages granted by Islam. She saw no objection, irom the
woman’s point of view, to the privilzges that men

enjoyed under Tslam, and Moslem women were in no
way victimized by the law of the Koran; it was their
indifference and their 1gnorance of that law that had
enabled men 1o abuse their rights.

48, Mr. DUNLOP (New Zealand) thought that
the debates which had iaken place had enabled rep-
resentatives to achieve a better intcllectual under-
standing of the different systems and practices in the
various countries. Therc would be no point in going
on with the work unless there was some hope of agree-
ing on texts which a substantial number of countries
would feel alle to ratify. The task was z difficult one
and could not be accomplished quickly. The peoples of
the world might be anxious to see the results, but the
primary objective was to draw up instruuments that
conld be applied, and not simply propaganda docu-
ments or even a new declaration. That goal could be
attained only if all the delegations acted in complete
sincerity and in a spirit of mutual trust.

49, Most of the substantive articles of the draft cove-
nant on civil and pelitical rights (11/2573, annex 1)
were generally acceptable to his delegation, but scveral
articles in the draft covenant on economic, social and
cultural rights (14/2573, annex 1) would prevent it
from voting for adoption of that covenant. As his
Government had not yet hecn able 1o complete its con-
sultations on the drafts, he could only indicate tenta-
tive views on a number of important points.

50, The Internatienz! Law Comunission had recom-
mended that the European practice should be followed
in cases where no specific provision for reservations
was included in a treaty: that is, a State that made a
reservation would be prevented from becoming a party
to the treaty if any State objected to the reservation.
It remained to be seen whether all countries would
agree to accept that procedure. The covenants or a
proiocol of signature should therefore contain provi-
sions on reservations in order to avoid the confusion
which had arizen in connexion with the Convention on
the Prevention and Punishment of the Crime of Geno-
cide. The drafts beiore the Commitiee were not con-
fined to a statement of [undamental rights. They dealt
with matters of derail and it was understandable that
States should wish to make reservations on specific
points. Similarly, some broad statements of fundamental
rights were acceptable but could be interpreted as
excluding administrative practices in themselves per-
fectly reasonable. Every State would probably find some
provision which was not acceptable, and States should
not be deterred from ratifying the covenants merely
because of practical difficulties which the General As-
sembly might not even have considered. Some rep-
resentatives felt that a provision cnabling States to
qualify their acceptance could be at variance with the
essential purposes of the covenants. Some of the ar-
ticles already provided only minimum guarantees, A
general right of reservation could render the cove-
nants nugatory. The object of some of the proposals
in annex I to the report of the Human Rights Com-
mission (12/2373) was to give only a limited right to
make reservations, but it was doubtful whether the
limitations wouid be eflective in practice.

51. 'The question of reservations was a fundamental
prablem, which should be solved before detaiied con-
sideration of the substantive articles. Ilis delegation
was inclined to favour the drafting of a protocol of



5715t mecting—2 November 1954 145

signature, sctting forth the reservativms which each
State wished to make and which other States were
prepared to accept. Such a solution had at lecast the
advantage that whoever drafted the protocol would
have to overcome practical difficulties as they arose.
The draft covenant on civil and political rights might
be effective if the right to make reservations was limnited
in accordance with the United Kingdom proposal (12/
2573, para. 206), but that method did not have the
dynamic quality of a separate profocol.

52, ilis delegation was in general agreement with the
vicw of the French and the United Kingdom rep-
resentatives that the draft covenant on civil and politi-
cal rights should Le made binding immediately on its
signature and ratification.

33. It was inclined to support the proposal made hy
the Commtission on the Status of Women on article
22 of the drait covenant on civil and political rights,
but would not insist on its inclusion 1 the adoption
of such an amendment made it impossible for a num-
ber of States to sign the covenant. His delegation had
no strong objection to the reporting procedure sug-
gested in article 49 of the draft covenant on civil and
political rights.

54, The implementation measures in articles 27 to
48 of that draft covenant presented many difficulties.
Article 48 was unacceptable for practical and con-
stitutional reasons, Conditions in the dependent ter-
ritories varicd considerably and mecasures that might
be appropriate in onc territory at any time might be
inappropriate in another. It was for the Administering
Authoritics, and for them alone, to decide what mecas-
ures should be taken. Their obligalions were declared
in Articles 73 and 74 of the United Nations Charter.
Article 48 was neither necessary nor useinl in the
covenant.

55. The procedure of the human rights committec
would depend on the judgment and independence of
its members. Although it seemed appropriate that they
should be nationals of the signatory States it was doubt-
ful whether the International Court of Justice should
be asked to elect them from among those nominated
by States. The Court was a judicial body., The com-
mittee’s work would certainly have a political element,
and there mght be some pressure on Members of the
Court to support candidates acceptable to certain Gov-
cruments. The Court would be entitled to refuse to
perform such a function, which was clearly of a politi-
cal character. If article 1, the provisions of which
were considered purely political Iy a number of coun-
trics, were retained in the covenant as well as article
48, the committee’s quasi-judicial standing would be
seripusly prejudiced.

56. The committce would receive complaints only
from States. His delegation was not opposed in prin-
ciple to some extension of the system for complaints,
hut, as the problem was extremely delicate, it should
be deferred until the examination of the other parts
of the draft covenants had heen completed.

57. Articles 17 to 24 of the draft covenant on eco-
mic, social and cultural rights were generally aceeptable
to New Zealand but he reserved the right to make more
detailed comments on them later.

58 His delegation thought that it would be possible
to draft a suitable clause to overcome the spccial diffi-

culties of federal States and ensure that they should
secure the co-operation of their constituent members as
goon as possible.

539, New Zealand would find it very difficult to sign
or ratify the covenants if they included article 1, which
was common fo both drafts, article 53 of the draft
covenant on civil and political rights and article 28 of
the draft eovenant on economic, social and cultural
rights. The terriforial application clause did not take
sufficient account of the realities of the position in the
dependent territories and was discriminatory. Seli-
determination was to be pursued as one of the funda-
mental principles of the Charter. It was not a right
in the same sense as the rights of individuals defined
in other articles of the covenants, and it should not be
mentioned in them. If the rights of individuals were the
subject of covenants which States could accept and if
the implementation clauses allowed for the gradual
development of the dependent peoples towards the full
enjoyment of those rights, those peoples would make
progress towards self-govermment in the manner en-
visaged in the Charter and would become able to bear
their share of the burden of preserving the basic prin-
ciples laid down in the Charter. That was equally troe
of the large nunorities and in some cases backward
minoritics in many Member States. When the right of
secession had heen discussed, several of those States
had invoked Article 2, paragraph 7, of the Charter.
It was agreed that reservations would not be permitted
on matters of prineiple and it seemed that those States
would find it difficult to ratify the covenants if article 1
were included, The retention of article 1 might dras-
tically reduce the number of States parties to the
covenants.

60. Tt was the purpose of the Third Committee to
cnsure the enforcement of the rights defined in the
covenants in all parts of the world as soon as possible.
That purpose would be defeated if the Committee dic
not take into account the existing relations betwcen
federal Governments ane their constituent states or the
relations between administering Powers and the people
who did not yet exercise their full sovereignty.

6G1. The CHAIRMAN having, with the Committee’s
approval, accorded the right of reply, as provided in
rule 116 of the rules of procedure, Mr. PAZHWAK
{ Afghanistan) said that at a previous meeting, when
he had referred to the Pakistan delegation’s comments
on article 18 of the draft covenant on civil and political
rights, he had not expressed an apinion on any par-
ticular concept. ITe had merely confirmed that there
was no element of compulsion in the Moslem religion.
Neither had he spoken of the alleged differences of
opinion between Moslems. He had simply wanted to
hear the Pakistan delegation’s views, Princess Sultan
had stated that her delegation was able to endorse
article 18 as it stood and that was all he had wanted
to know.

62. Mr. BAROODY (Saudi Arabia) said that his
criticism of article 18 had no connexion with the differ-
ences of opinion between Moslems about the inter-
pretation of koranic law. Since 1948 he had been point-
ing out that there was a dangerous lack of balance in
the wording of article 18, in which freedom of religion
was unduly emphasized and freedom of thought and
freedom of conscience were neglected. He pressed for
a satisfactory explanation on the subject and would
not be content with a repetition of the statement that



146 General Assembly—Ninth Session—Third Committee

it was a matter of tolerance. In some Moslem countries
Islam actually determined the inhabitants’ way of life
and koranic law was the equivalent >f a constitution;
that was why he felt obliged to ask why people were
pressing for the inclusion of an article which would
permit anybody to interiere in the domestic affairs
of Moslem States.

63. Mr. PINTO (Chile) expressed regret that the
examination of the draft covenants had given rise to
religious polemics. They were holding up the com-
pletion of the Committee’s work and milliens of people
throughout the world were impatiently waiting for its
results. He reserved the right to revert to the question

The meeting rose at 6 p.m.

Printed in U.S.A.

S5--42051—December 1954—1,850





